
 

MAYOR'S EXECUTIVE 
DECISION MAKING

__________________________________

Thursday, 10 December 2015
_______________________________________

Mayor’s Decision Log No. 115
______________________________________

1. 115 - SUBSTANCE MISUSE CONTRACT EXTENSIONS  (Pages 1 - 24)

If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Matthew Mannion, Committee Manager, 
Democratic Services  Tel:  0207 364 4651,  e-mail: matthew.mannion@towerhamlets.gov.uk 





Individual Mayoral Decision

Decision Log No: 115

Report of: Corporate Director Communities, Localities and 
Culture

Classification:
Unrestricted

Substance Misuse Contract Extensions

Is this a Key Decision? Yes 
Decision Notice 
Publication Date:

10 December 2015

General Exception or 
Urgency Notice 
published?

Not required

Restrictions: None

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Executive Summary
The Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) currently commissions drug / alcohol 
treatment interventions via 23 individual contracts with statutory and third sector 
providers (Appendix 1).  In 2010, officers, together with representatives from the 
National Treatment Agency, identified that the treatment system was no longer fit for 
purpose and proposed that the treatment system should be redesigned in order to 
reduce costs and improve performance and pursue best value in this service area.  
A full needs assessment was undertaken and a new Partnership Substance Misuse 
Strategy developed (adopted at Full Council, Jan 2012), with an agreed commitment 
to redesigning the drug / alcohol treatment system.  There was then, and remains 
now, an urgent need to re-procure this provision for three reasons:

i) Most services have not been subject to a competitive tender for a 
number of years.

ii) Current performance is declining across some providers
iii) There is now an agreement to reduce the amount of Public Health 

Grant allocated to drug / alcohol services by £560k (from £8.8m to 
£8.24m, including £865k for in-house Drug and Alcohol Intervention 
team, formerly DIP, provision).

 
A procurement exercise has now commenced to procure three core drug / alcohol 
service contracts.  Services are expected to commence in August 2016 (Appendix 
2).



Current drug / alcohol treatment service contracts expire on 31/12/15, following an 
extension agreed via Executive Mayoral Decision in April 2015.  A further extension 
of contracts is required to cover a gap in service between 01/01/16 and the 
implementation of new contracts in August 2016.  There have now been two 
extensions agreed for these services since contract novation (from Tower Hamlets 
Primary Care Trust) in April 2013 (Executive Mayoral Decisions March 2014 and 
April 2015) and there are risks to the organisation of legal challenge because there 
will be a period of 2.5 years since novation of contracts during which services have 
not been open to competitive procurement.  However, a series of past Executive 
decisions impacting on project time lines and technical problems with the 
procurement mean that the Council has little option if services are to continue to be 
provided to vulnerable adults. Procurement has now commenced and a decision to 
extend should be taken to maintain services in the short term to allow completion of 
a procurement process that is moving quickly towards completion and which will 
regularise the position.  

DECISION 

The Mayor is recommended to: 

1. Extend current treatment service contracts for a period of up to 12 months 
whilst re-procurement is completed, contracts are awarded and an 
adequate implementation period is given.

2. Authorise the Corporate Director of Communities Localities and Culture 
after consultation with the Corporate Director Law Probity & Governance 
to take all appropriate steps in relation to the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 including the publication of a VEAT notice.

3. Confirm that the final contract award decision for contracts specified will be 
made by the Mayor in Cabinet.

APPROVALS

1. (If applicable) Corporate Director proposing the decision or his/her 
deputy  

I approve the attached report and proposed decision above for 
submission to the Mayor.
  
Signed …………………………………  Date ……………

2. Chief Finance Officer or his/her deputy

I have been consulted on the content of the attached report which includes my
comments.



Signed ……………………………..….   Date …………... 

3. Monitoring Officer or his/her deputy

I have been consulted on the content of the attached report which includes my
comments.  

(For Key Decision only – delete as applicable) 
I confirm that this decision:-
(a) has been published in advance on the Council’s Forward Plan OR
(b) is urgent and subject to the ‘General Exception’ or ‘Special 
Urgency’ provision at paragraph 18 or 19 respectively of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules.  
  
Signed ……………………………..….   Date …………... 

4. Mayor

I agree the decision proposed in paragraph above for the reasons set out in 
paragraph 1 in the attached report.
  
Signed ……………………………..….   Date …………... 



Individual Mayoral Decision 
10 December 2015

Report of: Corporate Director Communities, Localities and 
Culture

Classification:
Unrestricted

Substance Misuse Contract Extensions

Lead Member Councillor Shiria Khatun, Cabinet Member for Safer 
Communities

Originating Officer(s) Andy Bamber Service Head for Safer Communities, 
Rachael Sadegh DAAT Co-ordinator

Wards affected All wards 

Key Decision? Yes

Community Plan Theme Safe and Cohesive Community, Healthy and 
Supportive Community

Executive Summary
The Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) currently commissions drug / alcohol 
treatment interventions via 23 individual contracts with statutory and third sector 
providers (Appendix 1).  In 2010, officers, together with representatives from the 
National Treatment Agency, identified that the treatment system was no longer fit for 
purpose and proposed that the treatment system should be redesigned in order to 
reduce costs and improve performance and pursue best value in this service area.  
A full needs assessment was undertaken and a new Partnership Substance Misuse 
Strategy developed (adopted at Full Council, Jan 2012), with an agreed commitment 
to redesigning the drug / alcohol treatment system.  There was then, and remains 
now, an urgent need to re-procure this provision for three reasons:

iv) Most services have not been subject to a competitive tender for a 
number of years.

v) Current performance is declining across some providers
vi) There is now an agreement to reduce the amount of Public Health 

Grant allocated to drug / alcohol services by £560k (from £8.8m to 
£8.24m, including £865k for in-house Drug and Alcohol Intervention 
team, formerly DIP, provision).

 
A procurement exercise has now commenced to procure three core drug / alcohol 
service contracts.  Services are expected to commence in August 2016 (Appendix 
2).



Current drug / alcohol treatment service contracts expire on 31/12/15, following an 
extension agreed via Executive Mayoral Decision in April 2015.  A further extension 
of contracts is required to cover a gap in service between 01/01/16 and the 
implementation of new contracts in August 2016.  There have now been two 
extensions agreed for these services since contract novation (from Tower Hamlets 
Primary Care Trust) in April 2013 (Executive Mayoral Decisions March 2014 and 
April 2015) and there are risks to the organisation of legal challenge because there 
will be a period of 2.5 years since novation of contracts during which services have 
not been open to competitive procurement.  However, a series of past Executive 
decisions impacting on project time lines and technical problems with the 
procurement mean that the Council has little option if services are to continue to be 
provided to vulnerable adults. Procurement has now commenced and a decision to 
extend should be taken to maintain services in the short term to allow completion of 
a procurement process that is moving quickly towards completion and which will 
regularise the position.  

Recommendations:

The Mayor is recommended to: 

4. Extend current treatment service contracts for a period of up to 12 months 
whilst re-procurement is completed, contracts are awarded and an 
adequate implementation period is given.

5. Authorise the Corporate Director of Communities Localities and Culture 
after consultation with the Corporate Director Law Probity & Governance 
to take all appropriate steps in relation to the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 including the publication of a VEAT notice.

6. Confirm that the final contract award decision for contracts specified will be 
made by the Mayor in Cabinet.

1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 There has been a commitment to re-procuring the current drug / alcohol 
treatment system since 2010 in order to pursue best value within this service 
area.  Unfortunately, despite best efforts, Officers have been unable to 
progress this agenda until recently and new services will not be implemented 
until Q2 2016/17.

1.2 Current drug / alcohol treatment service contracts terminate on 31/12/15 
following a previous extension granted via Executive Mayoral Decision in April 
2015.

1.3 Without an extension to current contracts there will be a gap in service across 
all drug / alcohol treatment services between 01/01/16 and August 2016.



2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 Terminate all treatment services until new contracts procured.  This option 
involves considerable risk.  There are in excess of 2000 residents accessing 
structured drug and / or alcohol treatment each year in the borough.  
Termination of services would leave a vulnerable population without services 
and would instigate risk of crime, violence and health harms affecting the 
individual, family and wider population.  Withdrawal of services would also be 
contrary to national best practice, local and national strategies and would not 
comply with the statutory public health duties of the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012.  

2.2 Continue with a selected number of services and terminate others.  This 
option would be difficult without radical restructure across all services and 
would require an Equality Assessment and sufficient time for implementation.  
Such an exercise would involve two periods of service disruption (immediately 
and post procurement) and therefore would represent a significant risk to 
service users.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1. Background

3.2 The Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) currently commissions drug / 
alcohol treatment interventions via 23 individual contracts with statutory and 
third sector providers (Appendix 1).  In 2010, officers and health partners 
identified that the treatment system was no longer fit for purpose and 
proposed that the treatment system should be redesigned in order to reduce 
costs and improve performance and pursue best value in this service area.  A 
full needs assessment was undertaken and a new Partnership Substance 
Misuse Strategy developed (adopted at Full Council, Jan 2012), with an 
agreed commitment to redesigning the drug / alcohol treatment system.  
There is an urgent need to re-procure this provision for three reasons:

i) Most services have not been subject to a competitive tender since 
novated in 2013.

ii) Current performance is declining across some providers
iii) There is now an agreement to reduce the amount of Public Health 

Grant allocated to drug / alcohol services by £560k (from £8.8m to 
£8.24m, including £865k for in-house Drug and Alcohol Intervention 
team, formerly DIP, provision).

3.3 Officers led a redesign project supported by the National Treatment Agency 
(now Public Health England), Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust, local Police 
and Probation services, statutory and voluntary sector treatment service 
providers and service users.  In briefings with lead members and the Mayor, 
concerns were aired about the impact upon local service providers.  With the 
agreement of CMT, detailed proposals for a new treatment system were drawn 
up. However the Executive was not in favour of a change in this area at this 
time wanting more work to be done on understanding the impact on local 
business and suspended the procurement project, instead   agreeing 



extensions to current contracts in Cabinet in 2013 (following novation of Public 
Health contracts from the PCT) and via Independent Mayoral Decisions in 2014 
and 2015. 

3.4  Cognisant of the lead in times and diminishing time line for re procurement 
Officers re-engaged with the redesign process in 2013 in an attempt to stay on 
the project critical path and to facilitate an early start to the commissioning 
process. An  updated needs assessment, a new service review and options for 
a new treatment system were completed by May 2014 . Executive clearance to 
proceed was pursued and received via Cabinet decisions spanning July 14th, 
September 14th 2014 and March 15th 2015.  These decisions were also 
reviewed by overview and scrutiny where officers re-enforced the Substance 
Misuse Strategy commitments to a re-designed treatment system agreed in Full 
Council and the procurement process that would be followed by officers.  
Appendix 3 illustrates the new treatment system structure.

3.5    Current Procurement Process

3.6      A competitive tender process has now commenced to procure the following 3 
contracts:

i. Drug / alcohol referral / outreach service
ii. Drug / alcohol treatment service
iii. Drug / alcohol recovery support service

3.7 A wide range of organisations were notified of our intention to tender and were 
invited to a market engagement event on 08/04/15.  The procurement process 
being followed is a restricted process with negotiation (as agreed with 
procurement and legal leads) and this commenced in July 2015.This means 
that the process is in two stages (PQQ followed by ITT) and there is an option 
to negotiate with bidders before final submissions are made.  The pre-
qualification questionnaire (PQQ) was made available via the London tenders 
portal on 1st July and invitations to tender were sent on 3rd November following 
evaluation of PQQ responses.  

3,8 Since Executive Clearance to proceed was secured, the procurement process 
has been delayed for a number of further reasons  including a  budget 
challenge as part of the MTFP planning process, the impact of new 
procurement regulations, further partnership negotiations necessary to reach 
agreement on certain aspects of the specification and an extended 
prequalification questionnaire (PQQ) process.

3.9 Budget Variation
Progress was delayed in the latter stages of 2014 with a Public Health   
budget proposal to reduce the DAAT funding by £1m.The proposal 
significantly impacted upon the budget for the development of the  new 
treatment system. There followed protracted negotiations and the final savings 
amount was agreed at £560k. Following the Cabinet paper in March 2015, 
there remained some uncertainty regarding the overall budget for substance 
misuse services in order to achieve savings via the Public Health Grant.  This 
was worked through in detail across directorates.  



3.10   Service Specifications
As the service specifications for new services were developed, there was 
some concern from Tower Hamlets CCG in relation to the dual diagnosis 
(mental health and substance misuse) aspect of the service and additional 
work was completed to ensure this high risk area of treatment was specified in 
a way that satisfied all partners. 

3.11   New Procurement Regulations
Procurement regulations changed significantly in February 2015 and resultant 
discussion between procurement and legal services about the implications for 
this project had an impact upon documentation required for this tender.  The 
contracts will be procured via a restricted process with negotiation, a 
methodology not previously used within LBTH.  The new regulations have 
changed the classification of these types of contracts which mean that the 
Council should publish its interim arrangements through a voluntary ex ante 
transparency notice (VEAT notice) to the marketplace.   This will ensure that 
the Council is seen to be transparent about its commercial activities and will 
mitigate the risk of challenge. 

3.12   Re-start of PQQ process
On 11th August 2015 the tender panel noticed that a number of bids were 
made by organisations that were included as subcontracting parties of other 
bids for the same service.  Upon advice from the Council’s legal team, 
Counsel opinion was sought regarding how to proceed in light of this finding.  
Counsel determined that being party to more than one bid for the same 
service was not permissible as this may distort competition.  However, as the 
procurement documents did not provide any rules or flexibility in relation to 
this matter any bidders disqualified for this reason would have a legitimate 
claim against the Council on grounds of breach of transparency.  Whilst being 
party to more than one bid is likely to distort competition, this could be argued 
by potential bidders. Following this Counsel’s opinion procurement will be 
ensuring future advice to officers and ITT documentation will be amended to 
make clear that this is not permissible.  If the process had not been subject to 
this delay an award recommendation would have been available within the 
timeframe of the original contract extension.

3.13   Upon advice of Counsel, bidding organisations were contacted to make clear 
that being party to more than one bid is not permissible and to ask them to 
resubmit their PQQ within 28 days.   

3.14 A revised timescale for this procurement has been established with an 
expected completion date of late January 2016. It should be noted that this 
date will only be met if the right to negotiate is not exercised, a decision that 
will be taken following submission of the full bids in December.  As this 
procurement will bring about a significant reconfiguration of services, a 
negotiation stage could better inform an award recommendation.  If 
negotiation is used, the process is expected to extend by 1-2 months.  Once 
the procurement process has concluded, a recommendation for award will 
proceed to the Executive for a decision to award.  



3.15 New Contract Start Date and Extension required for Current Contracts

3.16 The actual contractual start date for new services will depend upon the 
process of agreeing the award recommendation – Cabinet / executive Mayoral 
decision / delegated authority.  This decision will require Executive approval. 

3.17 Timescales have been developed to provide an estimation of contract start 
date.  As illustrated in Appendix 2, this will mean that contracts will not start 
until August 2016 and therefore a further extension to current contracts will be 
required to ensure service continuity for this cohort of vulnerable individuals.

3.18 There have now been two extensions agreed for these services since contract 
novation in April 2013 (Executive Mayoral Decisions Jan 2014 and April 2015) 
and there is concern about vulnerability of the organisation to legal challenge 
because the services have not been open to competitive procurement in a 
number of years.  However, procurement has now commenced and a decision 
to extend would be taken against a backdrop of an already commenced and 
significantly progressed procurement process.  

3.19   The timeline outlined demonstrates that a 9 month extension would be 
necessary.  However, if we choose to exercise our right to negotiate, or if the 
executive decision making process is delayed in any way or called in, it would 
be useful to have authorisation to extend beyond 9 months.  In this case, it 
may be prudent to issue contract extensions for 9 months with the option to 
extend for a further 3 months should this become necessary. 

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

4.1 The report seeks the approval of the Mayor in Cabinet to extend the current 
treatment service contracts beyond the termination date of the 31st December 
2015 for a further 12 months period.  The purpose of the further extension 
sought is to enable the re-procurement of the contracts to be completed to 
ensure continuity of service provision for vulnerable individuals.  

4.2 A total of £8.8m is provided through the Public Health Grant and allocated to 
fund the treatments contracts of £8.24m and £865k for the in-house Drug and 
Alcohol Intervention Team, formerly the DIP provision. As part of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan for 2015/16 a savings target of £560k was identified to be 
delivered through a reduction in the treatment contracts budget. The revised 
budget available for commissioning of the new contracts will be reduced by 
the savings target therefore the total provision will be £7.375m.  

4.3 There is currently sufficient provision within the existing budget envelope to 
manage the contracts extension. However, this will mean that the planned 
savings reduction will not be fully realised in both 2015/16 and 2016/17. 

|



5. LEGAL COMMENTS 

5.1. It is proposed to award 23 contracts for terms of 9-12 months, as set out in 
Appendix 1. 

5.2. The Public Contracts Regulations 2006 have now been replaced by the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015.  The new regulations have abolished the old idea of 
“part B services” and a new regime has been introduced.

5.3. Services of the nature included in this report are now referred to in 
Schedule 3 of the new regulations.  Schedule 3 lists a range of services 
(similar in scope to those that were covered by the old Part B services) to 
which a new threshold of £625,050 applies. This means that where the 
estimated value of a contract is below this threshold then the new 
regulations do not apply at all.  It can be seen from Appendix 1 that only 
three of the proposed contracts would otherwise be subject to the new 
regulations.

5.4. Where such a contract is subject to the regulations the Council is 
required to:

- Place an advert requesting bids for the services in the Official Journal of 
the European Union

- Award a contract following a fair reasonable and transparent process

- Place an award notice in OJEU

5.5. It is clear that the Council is at risk in respect of these three contracts as 
the proposed award is in breach of the new Public Contracts 
Regulations.  Therefore, the Council could be subject to a challenge from 
an organization which has not had the opportunity to bid for the 
contracts.  The Council could be subject to a damages claim and more 
significantly the purported contract could be annulled.  This could leave 
the Council at risk of a subsequent challenge by the organization who 
considered that they had entered into a good contract with the Council.

5.6. In respect of the three contracts referred to in paragraph 5.5, the Council 
could publish a voluntary ex ante transparency notice (“VEAT Notice”) in the 
OJEU. The purpose of the notice is to explain to the market why the Council 
has awarded these contracts and allows the Council to be transparent about 
its commercial activities and mitigates the risk by limiting the timeframe 
during which potential challenges can be made after a contract has been 
awarded. The VEAT Notice has the effect of starting a 10 day standstill 
period during which any potential challenges to these contracts (presuming 
that the Council’s reasons as stated in the notice allow for such a challenge) 
must be started within the specified time period.  It is very unlikely that a 
challenge received outside the time period especially in respect of an 
ineffectiveness claim would be successful. (Where a VEAT Notice has not 
been published, challenges of ineffectiveness can be received within 6 
months of the contract being entered into and this is reduced to 30 days 



where a contract award notice has been published or where the bidders 
have been informed of the conclusion of the contract and a summary of the 
relevant reasons.) 

5.7. The Council has previously not published a VEAT Notice in respect of these 
contracts because they were Part B Services under the Public Contract 
Regulations 2006 and as such, there was no obligation on the Council to 
follow the OJEU process; the only requirement was to conduct tenders in an 
open, fair and transparent manner. Since the introduction of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015, there is a new requirement in respect of 
contracts previously considered Part B Services with a value of £625,050.00 
or above to be subjected to the OJEU process. In light of this and in relation 
to the 3 high value contracts, the Council would be potentially vulnerable to 
challenge from prospective bidders and as explained above at paragraph 
5.6, the VEAT Notice will have the effect of mitigating these risks.

5.8. However, there is always a risk when publishing a VEAT Notice that within 
the relevant period the Council is challenged on its decision to award the 
contracts without having followed a competitive process. Notwithstanding 
this risk, the Council has a duty to be transparent and any claim for damages 
may be significantly reduced given that the intention behind the awards was 
not to act in an anticompetitive manner as the decision to award is notified to 
the market through the VEAT Notice.

5.9. In respect of the remainder of the contracts shown in Appendix 1 the 
Council is required only to follow a fair and transparent process under the 
law following the general European principles.  A direct award offends 
these principles but a remedy of having the contract declared ineffective 
is not open to a would-be challenger.  It should be noted that no award 
notice need be placed in OJEU in respect of these contracts. 

5.10. The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.  This is referred to as the Council's best 
value duty.

5.11. One of the ways in which the Council achieves best value is by subjecting 
its purchases to competition in accordance with its procurement procedures 
and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  The Council should be 
committed to working with these contractors during the new 12 month 
contract period to ensure that ways of working are advanced that ensure 
the occurrence of continuous improvements in line with the Council's best 
value duty.

5.12. The direct awards do not involve competition and therefore, the Council 
would not be following its own Procurement Procedures.  Therefore, 
this requires a specific waiver of the application of the Council's 
procurement procedures to these contracts. Before doing so, the Mayor 
should first be satisfied that one of the grounds for waiving those procedures 
is made out. Relevant grounds for consideration are set out in section 12.1 of 



the procurement procedures and include the following:

5.12.1(a) the nature of the market for the works to be carried out or the 
supplies or services to be provided has been investigated and has 
demonstrated that only a single source of supply is available, or it is 
otherwise clearly in the Council's interest to do so

5.13 Reasons are provided in the report as to why it may be considered 
appropriate to deviate from the Council 's procurement procedures, which 
may be summarised as follows -

5.13.1 The Council has conducted preparatory work and intends to 
conduct public procurement from March 2015.

5.13.2 The existing contracts will  terminate before the procurement can 
be completed.

5.13.3 The Council is obligated to continue to provide services in 
accordance with its statutory functions and it would be undesirable 
for no services to be provided until the new procurements have 
been completed and may in certain circumstances lead to the 
Council breaching other statutory obligations.

5.14 There is a risk of challenge to the proposed contract awards for alleged non- 
compliance with the duties outlined in 5.1 and 5.2 above.  The risk is 
lessened as the Council clearly has a pragmatic reason for requiring these 
short term contracts and has some basis, by reason of the preparatory steps 
taken, that it is not the Council's long term intention to avoid competition.

5.15 Where a contract is for a value in excess of the new threshold  the Council 
must issue an award notice as soon as possible, stating clearly the 
reason for the award.  This will commence the time period within which a 
challenge which could cause ineffectiveness and reduce the risk of a 
successful challenge

5.16 Before awarding the contracts, the Council must have due regard to the 
need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010,the need to 
advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between 
persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don't (the public 
sector equality duty).  The level of equality analysis required is that which is 
proportionate to the function in questions and its potential impacts.

6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Extension of current contracts would maintain a status quo and therefore 
would not necessitate an Equality Assessment.  The re-procurement of the 
treatment system has been subject to an Equalities Assessment and 
widespread consultation.  Extension of some contracts and not others (not a 
recommended option) would undoubtedly require an Equality Assessment 
and may impact upon different protected characteristic groups in different 
ways.



7. BEST VALUE (BV) IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The Council is fulfilling its best value duty via the reprocurement of all current 
contracts.  Whilst an extension of current contracts to facilitate this is not fully 
in line with best value duties specific to finance the fact that this is necessary 
to avoid breaching wider statutory responsibilities relating to care creates a 
best value rationale based on duty of care considerations. There is no other 
reasonable solution whilst services are being procured. Outside of this 
process, DAAT officers have already re-procured waste management 
services, are re-procuring equipment supplies contracts and are consulting on 
decommissioning an in-borough inpatient detoxification service. These 
additional activities are being pursued in order to achieve savings and 
improve outcomes. Whilst the set of circumstances that came together to 
cause the damage to the critical pathway of this procurement project were 
fairly unique and unlikely to be repeated a Best Value Learning framework is 
in place to minimise the risk of repetition of those circumstances where they 
were not inherent to the Directly Elected mayoral model.   

8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

8.1 The decision regarding extension of current contracts does not have any 
impact upon the environment.  

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

8.1. Termination of services would result in significant risk to drug / alcohol users 
and their families / children as well as the general population.  Without 
services in place drug users would not be able to access prescribed 
medication and psychological support and would return to purchasing and 
using illicit drugs. The health impact of continued drug / alcohol use would 
increase and could increase the rate of drug / alcohol related deaths across 
the borough as well as increase the burden upon health services.  Extension 
of current contracts would mitigate against these risks. There is some 
theoretical risk of legal challenge to the short term contract extension. 
However such a challenge would be most likely to come from prospective 
contractors and as the Council has already started the procurement process 
the risk is considered to be relatively low.       

10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

9.1 It is estimated that every ten addicts not in treatment in 2010-11 committed 13 
robberies and bag snatches, 23 burglaries, 21 car-related thefts and more 
than 380 shoplifting thefts (Public Health England).  LBTH has the 8th highest 
rate of alcohol related crime in London.

9.2 Termination of treatment services would have a considerable negative impact 
on crime and anti-social behaviour.



11. SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are in excess of 400 individuals in treatment at any one time who live 
with children and more who have access to children.  The detrimental impacts 
of substance misuse on children of addicted parents are well documented.  
Withdrawing treatment and support from these individuals would place a 
significant number of children at risk and require review of all child protection 
plans involving substance misuse. 

____________________________________

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report
 Equality Assurance Checklist.

Appendices
 Appendix 1: DAAT Contract Values
 Appendix 2: New Treatment System Structure

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

 None.

Officer contact details for documents:
N/A







Appendix 1: DAAT Contract Values

 Contract provider Description 

12 months 9 months

 Providence Row Providence Row Dellow Centre Substance Misuse Worker40,000.00£              £30,000.00

 Compass Isis - Women's Drug Service 275,392.00£            £206,544.00

 RAPt RAPt Island Day Program 311,577.00£            £233,682.75

 RAPt RAPt Changes Programme 56,000.00£              £42,000.00

 Salvation Army Harbor Recovery Unit 503,670.00£             £377,752.50

 Nacro NACRO Substance Misuse Intervention Link Service36,934.00£              £27,700.50

 Bangladeshi Drugs Project Nafas 369,527.00£            £277,145.25

 Bangladeshi Drugs Project Abstinence Support Network (Nafas) 41,740.00£              £31,305.00

 Barts & The London NHS 

Trust  Alcohol A&E Division and Treatment 100,000.00£            £75,000.00

 East London NHS 

Foundation Trust Health E1 122,000.00£            £91,500.00

 RAPt Community Alcohol Service 600,000.00£            £450,000.00

 Lifeline Community Drug Team (CDT) 740,377.00£            £555,282.75

 East London NHS 

Foundation Trust Specialist Addiction Unit 1,077,419.00£         £808,064.25

 East London NHS 

Foundation Trust Blood-borne virus team 205,202.00£             £153,901.50

 East London NHS 

Foundation Trust Dual diagnosis service 385,420.00£            £289,065.00

 Barts & The London NHS 

Trust  Specialist Midwife 43,347.00£              £32,510.25

 Mind in Tower Hamlets & 

Newham Somali Substance Misuse Link Project 36,000.00£              £27,000.00

 Pharmacies* Needle exchange Pharmacy LES 28,000.00£              £21,000.00

 Pharmacies* Supervised Comsumption Pharmacy LES 232,000.00£            £174,000.00

 Clinical Commissioning 

Group Shared Care and Local Enhanced Services 669,431.00£            £502,073.25

 Clinical Commissioning 

Group EMIS Maintenance (Shared Care) 750.00£                   £562.50

 East London NHS 

Foundation Trust Prescribing provision at Harbour Recovery Centre37,512.00£               £28,134.00

 Lifeline CDT Recovery Co-ordinators 50,000.00£              £37,500.00

 *Pharmacy expenditure 

combined but consists of a 

number of contracts with 

individual pharmacies 

therefore individual 

contractual value much 

lower 

Contract Value





Appendix 2: New Treatment System Structure





EQUALITY ANALYSIS QUALITY ASSURANCE CHECKLIST 

Name of ‘proposal’ and how has it been implemented
(proposal can be a policy, service, function, strategy, project, 
procedure, restructure/savings proposal)

Extension of contracts with Drug and alcohol service 
providers 

Directorate / Service CLC, Safer Communities, DAAT

Lead Officer Rachael Sadegh, DAAT - Coordinator

Signed Off By (inc date) Andy Bamber, Service Head, Safer Communities

Summary – to be completed at the end of completing 
the QA (using Appendix A)

The findings of the Quality Assurance checklist are that a 
Full EA will not be undertaken as due regard to the nine 
protected groups is embedded in the proposal and the 
proposal has low relevance to equalities.

Example

         Proceed with implementation

As a result of performing the QA checklist, this report does
not appear to have any adverse effects on people who share
Protected Characteristics and no further actions are
recommended at this stage.

   

Stage Checklist Area / Question
Yes / 
No /

Unsure

Comment (If the answer is no/unsure, please ask 
the question to the SPP Service Manager or 
nominated equality lead to clarify) 

1 Overview of Proposal

a
Are the outcomes of the proposals clear? Yes The report seeks Mayoral approval to endorse the approach 

set out regarding the contract extension with Substance 
Misuse treatment providers in the borough.



b

Is it clear who will be or is likely to be affected by what 
is being proposed (inc service users and staff)? Is 
there information about the equality profile of those 
affected? 

Yes The service users and residents will continue to benefit from 
current services. The proposed extension of contracts with 
treatment providers will allow the continuation of drug and 
alcohol services, providing much needed services for a 
vulnerable population cohort in the borough. 
The extension will also allow the continuation of the ongoing 
re-procurement process.

2 Monitoring / Collecting Evidence / Data and Consultation

a

Is there reliable qualitative and quantitative data to 
support claims made about impacts?

Yes There is a wealth of data including 9 protected characteristics 
of clients in treatment to inform service delivery.  Vast 
quantitative and qualitative information are available in the 
substance misuse needs assessment. Quarterly contract 
monitoring with services is in place.

Is there sufficient evidence of local/regional/national 
research that can inform the analysis?

Yes The most recent Substance Misuse needs assessment 
included comparative analysis. Regional and national 
analysis conducted by Public Health England is also available 
and informs service delivery. 
The TH Partnership is measuring performance in relation to 
other comparable areas and the national average. 

b
Has a reasonable attempt been made to ensure 
relevant knowledge and expertise (people, teams and 
partners) have been involved in the analysis?

Yes Available data used in Needs assessment and Quarterly 
contract monitoring is discussed with services and DAAT 
Board. 

c
Is there clear evidence of consultation with 
stakeholders and users from groups affected by the 
proposal?

n/a Stakeholders and service users were involved in the initial 
needs assessment. The outcome was to re-procure the 
current treatment system and deliver a more recovery 
focused system. 

3 Assessing Impact and Analysis

a
Are there clear links between the sources of evidence 
(information, data etc) and the interpretation of impact 
amongst the nine protected characteristics?

Yes The analysis of treatment population data informs strategic 
direction of service delivery. 

b
Is there a clear understanding of the way in which 
proposals applied in the same way can have unequal 
impact on different groups?

Yes Treatment providers have clear understanding of the impact 
of their services on different groups in treatment. 

4 Mitigation and Improvement Action Plan



a Is there an agreed action plan? Yes A timetable is attached to the main paper explaining how the 
contract extension will relate to re-procurement exercise. 

b

Have alternative options been explored Yes There is only one viable option which ensures that drug and 
alcohol services in the borough are delivered. 
Terminating contracts and withdrawing services in Tower 
Hamlets would impact greatly on a vulnerable treatment 
population with wider implications for public health and the 
safety of local communities.  
The successful re-procurement of substance misuse services 
requires the extension of current contracts with providers. 

5 Quality Assurance and Monitoring

a
Are there arrangements in place to review or audit the 
implementation of the proposal?

Yes Quarterly monitoring of treatment providers is in place to 
ensure delivery of contractual obligations and high treatment 
standards. DAAT Board oversees performance of the 
treatment system in Tower Hamlets. 

b Is it clear how the progress will be monitored to track 
impact across the protected characteristics??

Yes Monitoring of treatment providers and performance reporting 
to DAAT Board will continue quarterly. 

6 Reporting Outcomes and Action Plan

a
Does the executive summary contain sufficient 
information on the key findings arising from the 
assessment?

Yes See summary

Appendix A

(Sample) Equality Assessment Criteria 

Decision Action Risk
As a result of performing the QA 
checklist, it is evident that due 
regard is not evidenced in the 
proposal and / or
a risk of discrimination exists 

Suspend – 
Further Work 
Required

Red



(direct, indirect, unintentional or 
otherwise) to one or more of the 
nine groups of people who share 
Protected Characteristics. It is 
recommended that the proposal 
be suspended until further work 
or analysis is performed – via a 
the Full Equality Analysis 
template
As a result of performing the QA 
checklist, the policy, project or 
function does not appear to have 
any adverse effects on people 
who share Protected 
Characteristics and no further 
actions are recommended at this 
stage. 

Proceed with 
implementation

Green:


	Agenda
	1 115 - Substance Misuse Contract Extensions
	Appendix 1 -
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3


